
 
 
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA 

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 
www.flintshire.gov.uk 

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR 
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 

www.siryfflint.gov.uk 
 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg 

To: Cllr Tony Sharps (Chair) 

Councillors: Glyn Banks, David Cox, 
Paul Cunningham, Alan Diskin, Rosetta Dolphin, 
Brian Dunn, Jim Falshaw, Robin Guest, 
Brian Lloyd, Hilary McGuill and Mike Reece 

 
CS/NG 

 
27 June 2014 

 
Sharon Thomas 01352 702324 

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
A meeting of the LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE 
ROOM, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 3RD JULY, 2014 at 
9.30 AM to consider the following items. 
 
*PLEASE NOTE THAT THE MEETING WILL START AT 9.30AM. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Democracy & Governance Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES  

2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  

 Nominations will be sought for a Vice-Chair of the Committee. 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS)  

Public Document Pack



4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting on 15 May 
2014. 

5 THE FUTURE OF TAXI LEGISLATION (Pages 5 - 28) 

 To inform Members of forthcoming changes. 

6 LICENSING ACT 2003 - PERSONAL LICENCES (Pages 29 - 32) 

 To inform Members of how the Government proposes to deal with the renewal 
of Personal Licenses. 

 



LICENSING COMMITTEE  
15 MAY 2014  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee of Flintshire County 
Council held at County Hall, Mold on Thursday 15 May 2014.   
 
PRESENT: Councillor Tony Sharps (Chairman) 
Councillors: Glyn Banks, David Cox, Rosetta Dolphin, Ian Dunbar, Jim 
Falshaw, Brian Lloyd, Hilary McGuill, Mike Reece 
 
APOLOGIES: 
Councillor Brian Dunn 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
Solicitor, Team Leader, Licensing and Team Manager, Committee Services  
 

1. MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2013 had been circulated with the 
agenda. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the apologies being recorded for Councillors Banks and 
McGuill, the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.   
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3. INTENDED USE POLICY FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES LICENSED WITHIN 
FLINTSHIRE  
 

The Team Manager, Licensing, introduced the report on the 
recommended implementation of an Intended Use Policy for Hackney 
Carriage applications that would apply to new Hackney Carriage applications, 
renewal of existing Hackney Carriage licenses and the transfer of existing 
Hackney Carriage licences.   

 
Recent High Court cases had deemed that it was entirely lawful for a 

hackney carriage license by one authority to undertake pre booked hiring’s 
(private hire) outside of that authority area.  That would mean that hackney 
carriages licensed within Flintshire could be used for private hire bookings for 
operators who were based outside of the Flintshire area.  Also, hackney 
carriage vehicles from other authorities which may not meet Flintshire’s 
vehicle specification could be used as private hire vehicles in the Flintshire 
area. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Flintshire did not currently have regard to whether an applicant for a 
hackney carriage licence or the proprietor of a hackney carriage vehicle 
intended to work within Flintshire or if the vehicle would be used 
predominantly for the purpose of private hire work outside of Flintshire.  Whilst 
the current situation was not unlawful, it was not ideal from an enforcement 
point of view for vehicles to be operating outside of the local area where they 
were licensed.   

 
Monitoring of licensed vehicles was a routine part of the taxi licensing 

function and ensured that licensed vehicles were operating in compliance with 
the Authority’s licence conditions.  Such motoring was often undertaken jointly 
with colleagues in North Wales Police or with VOSA who were able to assess 
the roadworthiness of a vehicle, thereby promoting the safety of the public 
travelling in licensed vehicles. 

 
On application forms for hackney carriage licences, applicants would 

need to indicate on the forms whether they intended to predominantly operate 
in Flintshire.  If an applicant indicated that the vehicle would not operate within 
Flintshire, careful consideration would be given to the application.  For 
vehicles that were licensed, if it was believed that the vehicle was not 
operating predominantly in Flintshire, an investigation would take place and 
where it was determined that the vehicle was not operating within the policy, 
there would be a presumption that the licence would be reviewed.  Each 
application would be dealt with on its own merits but the policy would give an 
indication to applicants of the matters that the licensing authority would take 
into consideration. 

 
Delegated powers would be granted to the Licensing Team Leader or 

the Community Protection Manager, however, it was proposed that any 
decision to proceed with formal action should be brought before the Licensing 
Sub-Committee for final determination. 

 
The basis of the policy was devised and created by the Directors of 

Public Protection Wales Licensing Expert Panel, and all Welsh authorities 
were asked to contribute.  Neighbouring authorities within Wales were 
considering implementation of the policy and neighbouring authorities in 
England were also considering implementation of a similar policy which 
Members were supportive of. 
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the proposed Intended Use Policy be agreed; 
 
(b) That delegated powers be given to the Licensing Team Leader or the 

Community Protection Manager to consider and determine a licence 
where the applicant has indicted that they do not propose to operate 
predominantly in Flintshire; and 

 
(c) That delegated powers be given to the Licensing Team Leader or the 

Community Protection Manager to suspend or revoke a licence where 

Page 2



it was deemed that the hackney carriage was not being used 
predominantly within Flintshire, before a Licensing Sub Committee 
considers the matter before a final determination. 

 
4. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE 
 
 There were no members of the press or public present.     
 
 
  (The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and ended at 10.25 a.m.)  
 
 
 

 
/////////. 

Chairman 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 
 

THURSDAY, 3 JULY 2014 

REPORT BY: 
 

CHIEF OFFICER, PLANNING AND THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

SUBJECT:  
 

THE FUTURE OF TAXI LEGISLATION 

 
 
1.00 
 
1.01 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise Members of the proposals put forward by the Law 
Commission in respect of their review of taxi licensing legislation. 

  
2.00 
 
2.01 
 
 
 
 
 
2.02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.03 
 
 
 
2.04 

BACKGROUND 
 
The existing legislation relating to Hackney Carriages dates back to 
1847 and that for Private Hire to 1976. There is also a lot of case law 
which is confusing and sometimes contradictory in nature. The 
legislation has also not kept up with the rapidly evolving 
communication technology of the last 20 years. 
 
The existing regime is based upon two distinct forms of operation:- 
Hackney Carriages (e.g. like a London black cab) that can ply for hire, 
pick up passengers on the street and wait at dedicated hackney 
stands or ranks, and 
 
Private Hire Vehicles which cannot ply for hire and have to be pre-
booked via a licensed Operator. 
 
Local authorities licence vehicles with 8 seats or less. Larger 
minibuses, coaches and buses are licensed by the Driver and Vehicle 
Standards Agency. 
 
Flintshire currently licences 318 private hire vehicles, 72 private hire 
operators and 6 hackney carriages. 

  
3.00 
 
3.01 
 
 
3.02 
 
 
 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The proposed new regime aims to have the same basic principles of 
safe vehicle and safe driver - but with less bureaucracy. 
 
It will preserve the existing distinct types of operation but will remove 
the archaic term hackney carriage in favour of ‘taxi’ and keep the 
phrase ‘private hire vehicle’. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



3.03 
 
 
3.04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.05 
 
 
 
3.06 
 
 
 
 
 
3.07 
 
 
 
 
3.08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.09 
 

Administration of the licensing regime and enforcement will continue 
to be carried out at local level by Licensing Authorities. 
 
In a significant change from the current arrangement whereby 
individual licensing authorities have their own suite of locally adopted 
licence conditions it is proposed that conditions will be standardised 
across England and Wales and will relate to 4 objectives:- 
 
Public Safety 
Accessibility 
Enforcement 
Environmental Protection 
 
Licence fees will continue to be charged on a cost recovery basis and 
the proposal is to have a uniform set of fees to discourage applicants 
going to wherever is cheapest. 
 
The current role of Private Hire Operator will be replaced by that of a 
dispatcher. These licensed individuals will dispatch the vehicle and 
driver to fulfil a pre-booking. They must ensure that this is by a 
licensed driver using a licensed vehicle. They will also have to ensure 
that the required records are made and retained. 
 
This will facilitate more flexibility and allow ‘cross border working’ i.e. 
dispatchers will no longer be limited to using drivers and vehicles from 
their own licensing area. It is held that because the national standards 
will be in place all vehicles and drivers will meet acceptable levels.   
 
Enforcement will be strengthened because licensing officers will be 
able to take action in respect of any driver or vehicle anywhere. There 
will be new powers to stop a licensed vehicle on the road (currently 
only possible with police assistance). Vehicles used for touting (plying 
for hire when not licensed as a taxi) can be impounded. Fixed penalty 
notices will be able to be issued for breaching any provision in the 
new national standards.  
 
Accessibility is one of the new objectives. Disability awareness 
training will become a pre-condition of the grant or renewal of a 
licence. There will be a new duty to stop when hailed because of the 
current tendency of some drivers to go past a disabled person 
because they perceive that time will be wasted by assisting such a 
customer. 

  
4.00 
 
4.01 
 
 
4.02 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Members note the changes that are proposed in respect of taxi 
and private hire legislation. 
 
That further reports are prepared for the Licensing Committee as the 
Government’s intentions in respect of the Law Commission Review 

Page 6



 
 
 
4.03 
 
 

become clearer, and secondary legislation, guidance and the new 
national standards are published.   
  
Should Members wish to read the full 290 page Law Commission 
report following their review of taxi licensing legislation it is available 
on their website (lawcommision.gov.uk). 

  
5.00 
 
5.01 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None in respect of this report but there will be future implications 
dependent upon the extra work involved for the Licensing Authority 
and the level at which licence fees are set. 

  
6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 

 
None 

  
7.00 
 
7.01 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
None in respect of this report but vehicle emission limits are likely to 
feature in the proposed national standards for taxi and private hire 
vehicles. 

  
8.00 
 
8.01 

EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 
None in respect of this report but accessibility is one of the objectives 
in the proposed regime and will lead to more equitable treatment of 
customers with physical or mental impairment. 

  
9.00 
 
9.01 

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None in respect of this report but assessment will need to be made in 
future regarding the additional workload associated with the new 
regime. 

  
10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 

 
None 

  
11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 

 
 None 

 
12.00 APPENDICES 

 
 Law Commission Executive Summary 
  

 
 
 

Page 7



 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
Law Commission Report - Taxi and Private Hire Services 

  
 Contact Officer: Gemma Potter 

Telephone: 01352 703371 
Email: gemma.potter@flintshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 8



 1

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE SERVICES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Law Commission for England and Wales is an independent, non-

governmental body which reviews the law and recommends reform. Our report 

Taxi and Private Hire Services presents our recommendations for wholesale 

reform of the law. Our remit did not extend to making recommendations about the 

regulation of public service vehicles, or bus services, except to the extent that 

there is an overlap with taxi and private hire services. The report is accompanied 

by a draft Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Bill, which would give effect to those of 

our recommendations which would require legislative change, and an impact 

assessment containing the costs and benefits of our proposals.1 

BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 

1.2 The current law on taxis and private hire vehicles has evolved piecemeal since 

taxis in London were first regulated in 1630, primarily as a means of reducing 

congestion. The regulation of private hire vehicles developed in the latter part of 

the twentieth century in response to the growing demand for pre-booked services 

and concerns about the potential dangers associated with unregulated providers. 

1.3 The law is to be found in numerous pieces of legislation, with different laws 

applying in London, Plymouth, and the rest of England and Wales. Detailed 

requirements are determined by individual local licensing authorities, and there is 

a lack of consistency in the standards applied.  This is potentially harmful to 

public safety, and has a restrictive effect on business. There are overlaps with the 

regulation of some public service vehicles, in particular those with fewer than nine 

passenger seats, and there is confusion as to the proper licensing regime for 

vehicles such as stretch limousines and other novelty vehicles which do not 

necessarily sit comfortably in any regime. The current law also includes some 

restrictions which we think impose unnecessary burdens on business, and which 

we recommend for removal. 

1.4 The report considers the current law in detail and makes recommendations which 

would result in the repeal of much of the existing legislation and its replacement 

with a single legislative framework to regulate both taxi and private hire services. 
 

1
 The full report, draft Bill and impact assessment are available on our website: 

http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/areas/taxi-and-private-hire-services.htm. 

Page 9



 2

This would consist of a new Act of Parliament, underpinned by secondary 

legislation and guidance. The new regime would see the introduction of national 

standards for all taxis and private hire vehicles, set by the Secretary of State, with 

the power for local licensing authorities to set additional standards for taxi 

services only. Local authorities would, however, remain responsible for issuing 

licences and enforcement in relation to both taxis and private hire vehicles. 

1.5 The terms of reference for this project required us to consider the potential 

advantages of deregulation. We took this into account in the formulation of our 

recommendations, scrutinising each aspect of the regulatory system to determine 

whether the level of regulation it imposed could be justified. This approach 

underpins the recommendations made in the Report. In particular we have 

considered how a lighter-touch and more flexible regulatory regime for private 

hire services may benefit an industry which is more susceptible to the standard-

raising effect of competitive forces than the taxi trade. 

1.6 In formulating the appropriate level of regulation we concluded that regulatory 

intervention could only be justified if it promoted one or more of four defined 

purposes; namely public safety, accessibility, enforcement of the legislation and 

environmental protection. Our recommendations mean that standards relating to 

more peripheral issues, such as vehicle types and colours, could only be 

imposed locally in respect of taxi services.  

1.7 The recommendations in this Report have been formulated following a wide-

ranging consultation with representatives of the taxi and private hire services 

industries and the regulators, including local licensing authorities, the Traffic 

Commissioners and the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (formally the 

Vehicle and Operator Services Agency). We also consulted groups representing 

disabled persons, trades unions, and the police, and welcomed input from 

specialist consultants. We published a detailed consultation paper in May 2012 

followed by a six month consultation period during which we received more than 

3,000 written responses and attended more than 85 consultation meetings with 

stakeholders across England and Wales. We have also examined the regulatory 

structures in different parts of the world, for example, New York, Queensland, 

Australia, Ireland and parts of the European Union. 

THE TWO-TIER SYSTEM 

1.8 The current regulatory regime differentiates between taxis, which can be hailed in 

the street or hired at ranks, and private hire services which must be pre-booked. 

Page 10



 3

We considered whether the continuation of this two-tier system was beneficial, or 

whether it should be replaced by an alternative regime which would permit any 

licensed vehicle to be used by a licensed driver to pick up passengers in 

response to hails or at ranks. Although strong arguments were put forward in 

support of a new “one-tier” system, we recommend that the present two-tier 

system should be retained, albeit with important changes to the way in which the 

distinction between the two types of service is drawn. It is our view that the two-

tier structure promotes consumer choice and the provision of a wide range of 

services. Furthermore, the different ways in which taxis and private hire vehicles 

are engaged make different levels of regulation appropriate, so that a single 

system would lead to over or under-regulation. 

DEFINING TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE SERVICES 

1.9 Although we recommend retaining the two-tier system, we also propose 

significant changes to the way in which the legal distinction between the tiers 

should be drawn. The current system relies heavily on the imprecise concept of 

“plying for hire”, which performs the very important function of defining what taxis 

alone are allowed to do in undertaking rank and hail work. However, the meaning 

of the concept is not set out in statute and has become the subject of a body of 

case-law that is not wholly consistent. The advent of new technology such as 

mobile phone applications which enable the customer to hire a vehicle almost 

instantaneously has helped to blur the distinction between the two types of 

service. 

1.10 The core recommendation which forms the basis of the new framework we 

propose in this area is the creation of an offence of using a vehicle on a road to 

carry passengers, where both the vehicle and the driver have been hired for that 

purpose, without the appropriate licences. A further offence would differentiate 

between the different types of service by prohibiting anyone other than a licensed 

taxi driver, in a licensed taxi, from agreeing to use a vehicle for hire for a journey 

that starts “there and then”. This means that the holders of private hire licences 

would be prohibited from accepting a “there and then” hiring.  Instead all journeys 

would have to be pre-booked through a licensed dispatcher,2 and we recommend 

that statute should define this term. 

1.11 Our draft Bill makes a lawful private hire booking one for which records meeting 

prescribed requirements are kept, and where advance price information is 

 

2
 The term our draft Bill uses in place of the current “operator”. 

Page 11



 4

available on request. By contrast, customers would continue to be able to 

approach or hail a taxi for a journey beginning there and then with no need for 

any arrangements in advance.  

1.12 Under current law the operator is defined as the person who, in the course of  

business, makes provision for the “invitation or acceptance” of bookings for 

private hire vehicles. We think this definition is unnecessarily broad, and brings 

within its remit intermediaries who may arrange a booking through another 

intermediary and have no responsibility for selecting the car or driver. We 

recommend that operator licensing should only cover the functions of dispatching 

the vehicle and driver to fulfil a pre-booking, and not the functions of inviting and 

accepting bookings, which in themselves would no longer require a licence. As a 

result, we recommend that such licensees should be known as dispatchers and 

should be responsible for ensuring that the booking is fulfilled by a licensed driver 

using a licensed vehicle, that the appropriate information has been provided to 

the passenger, and that the required records are made and retained. It would be 

a criminal offence to carry out the functions of a dispatcher without holding an 

appropriate licence. 

CROSS-BORDER WORKING 

1.13 We recommend freeing up cross-border working for private hire services. 

Operators should no longer be limited to using drivers and vehicles from their 

own licensing area; nor should they be restricted to only inviting or accepting 

bookings within that licensing area. Under our recommended regulatory 

framework, licensing district boundaries lose much of their importance in relation 

to private hire vehicles. National standards for private hire, set by the Secretary of 

State following consultation, will ensure uniform standards across England and 

Wales. This will allow consumers to expect, as a minimum, the same level of 

safety and quality wherever they are, and will remove the incentive for applicants 

(both taxi and private hire) to seek licences in an area with less exacting 

standards.  

1.14 Although local authorities will continue to administer licences applied for in their 

area, they will do so on the basis of national standards, which they will have no 

discretion to vary for private hire vehicles and drivers. Once licensed, providers 

will be able to work across England and Wales and be subject to enforcement 

action by officers of any licensing authority.  

1.15 We do not propose any changes to the geographical aspects of the way taxis 

Page 12



 5

work: they will still only be allowed to stand at ranks and accept hails within the 

area in which they are licensed and they will continue to be allowed to undertake 

a pre-booked journey starting within or outside that area.  

1.16 We have heard complaints of problems with taxis seeking licences in an area 

known for lower standards or lower licensing fees with a view to undertaking pre-

booked work elsewhere, sometimes in areas whose standards the vehicle or 

driver does not meet. Whilst this is within the law, it undermines aspects of the 

regulatory system. Our recommendations will remove the incentive to engage in 

this practice as the same or similar minimum standards will apply to both the taxi 

and private hire sectors; we expect these to govern the most important aspects of 

driver and vehicle standards. In respect of those standards, taxis will be subject 

to the enforcement jurisdiction of enforcement officers anywhere. 

DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE 

1.17 Under current law, different legislation applies to London, Plymouth and the 

remainder of England and Wales. We recommend that the new legislation should 

apply throughout England and Wales, including London. There has been general 

support for this, subject to the proviso that the framework is sufficiently flexible to 

account for the significantly different features of London.  

1.18 The terminology used in current taxi legislation is outdated and archaic 

references to stage coaches and stage carriages have led to confusion as to 

whether pedicabs can be regulated as taxis. Private hire legislation covers 

vehicles provided for hire with the services of a driver for the purpose of carrying 

passengers, but there is uncertainty as to whether the provision of transport as 

part of a wider service, such as childminding, falls within the scope of private hire 

vehicle licensing.   

1.19 Uncertainty over the borderline between private hire regulation and the regulation 

of public service vehicles (which generally covers larger vehicles such as buses 

and minibuses), has also led to difficulties over the regulation of limousines and 

novelty vehicles. The issues relate both to which regime these vehicles should 

currently be regulated under, as this is not always clear and has led to some 

services escaping regulation altogether, and which regime would be more 

appropriate under a reformed system. We propose a clear boundary between the 

two regimes. 

1.20 As a deregulatory measure, we also recommend a change in the law to enable 

the providers of taxi and private hire services to use vehicles with the capacity to 

Page 13



 6

carry up to 16 passengers in particular circumstances under their existing licence. 

This would provide more flexibility for operators to use larger vehicles where it 

suits their business model without the additional burden of having to obtain a 

separate public service vehicle operator licence. 

1.21 We recommend that taxi and private hire regulation should cover the use of a 

vehicle to carry one or more passengers, where the vehicle and driver have been 

hired for that purpose. The draft Bill provides an exception for transport provided 

as part of a wider service, such as that provided in hotel courtesy cars or by 

carers, and of transport provided in connection with weddings and funerals, which 

is already exempted from regulation. Significantly, we propose bringing stretch 

limousines and other novelty vehicles clearly within private hire regulation. The 

same is true of pedicabs, which are already regulated as taxis outside London, 

but will fall within taxi licensing in London for the first time, pursuant to our 

reforms. 

1.22 We also make recommendations to clarify what vehicles and services should be 

subject to licensing obligations. The reference to “hire” in our Bill limits the 

regulation to commercial activities, thus excluding informal car sharing 

arrangements where any financial contribution is limited to a share of expenses. 

We also recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to exempt 

particular vehicles or services from licensing.  

COMMON NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR VEHICLES, DRIVERS AND 

DISPATCHERS 

1.23 Currently, standards for taxis, private hire vehicles, drivers and private hire 

operators are set by local authorities, which are responsible for the administration 

of the licensing system. This leads to substantial regional variation, even in such 

critical areas as the treatment of past criminal convictions and medical conditions. 

It can have a very restrictive effect on business, by making it difficult to be 

licensed in more than one area as a means of expanding one’s business.  

1.24 A key innovation in our recommended framework is the introduction of national 

standards for taxi and private hire vehicle licensing. These standards would relate 

to drivers, vehicles and dispatchers (as our draft Bill calls operators). The content 

of national standards would be determined by the Secretary of State further to a 

statutory consultation with specified stakeholders including the trades, regulators 

and disability groups. We are recommending that national standards should be 

limited to defined purposes, namely public safety, accessibility, matters relevant 

Page 14



 7

to the enforcement of the legislation and environmental protection. In respect of 

private hire services, national standards should entirely replace locally-set 

conditions. In respect of taxi services, by contrast, we recommend that national 

standards should be capable of being supplemented at local level.  

CRIMINAL OFFENCES SPECIFIC TO THE TRADES 

1.25 We propose the abolition of a number of out of date offences; in place of them we 

propose a more streamlined set of offences contained in our draft Bill together 

with reliance on the general criminal law or on licence conditions. We propose 

that the Secretary of State have the power to designate the most important 

nationally set standards so that breach of them will be a criminal offence.  

LOCAL TAXI STANDARDS AND TAXI FARE REGULATION 

1.26 The continuing ability of licensing authorities to set additional conditions would be 

subject to procedural requirements relating to consultation and publication. Our 

recommendations also retain the current system of leaving fares to the discretion 

of the local authority. Drivers would continue to be able to charge more than the 

metered fare where a journey begins inside the licensing area but ends beyond 

the compellable distance, provided the fare is agreed and recorded in advance. 

However, we recommend that licensing authorities should not have power to 

regulate third party booking fees which are agreed in advance, as these 

represent a genuinely competitive aspect of taxis working in the pre-booked 

market.  

ADMINISTRATION OF THE LICENSING SYSTEM 

1.27 Administration of the licensing regime and enforcement should continue to be 

carried out at local level by licensing authorities. Taxi licence fees should 

continue to be set on a cost recovery basis, with a uniform licence fee for private 

hire services to discourage applicants (who would now be subject to the same 

requirements across England and Wales) applying to an authority for purely 

financial reasons. We recommend procedural steps to improve co-operation 

between licensing authorities, to assist with administration and enforcement. We 

also recommend a more flexible power to create, remove and modify taxi zones, 

which would be subject to a public interest test. 

QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS 

1.28 We recommend allowing licensing authorities to continue to limit taxi numbers. 

We do not regard the current statutory criterion of “unmet demand” as 

appropriate and instead suggest a test based on the public interest, combined 

Page 15



 8

with procedural requirements such as a review every three years and a duty to 

consult.  

1.29 Whilst we accept that quantity controls can be a positive regulatory tool for 

licensing authorities, when exercised in accordance with the public interest and 

appropriate safeguards, they have the undesirable side-effect of creating inflated 

plate values (effectively transfer fees for vehicle licenses) which act as a barrier 

to entry. We recommend that there should be no changes to the transferability of 

licence plates in areas that currently have quantity restrictions, so that licence 

holders who may have invested a considerable amount of money to purchase the 

licence, or otherwise reasonably expected their plate to have accrued substantial 

value, would not be negatively impacted by our reforms. On the other hand, taxi 

licences in areas which first introduce quantity restrictions only after our reforms 

come into force should not be tradeable. This would prevent new plate values 

from arising in areas which introduce quantity restrictions only after 

implementation of our reforms. 

EQUALITY AND ACCESSIBILITY 

1.30 Although the general provisions of the Equality Act 2010 applicable to service 

providers apply to taxi and private hire services, it is clear that disabled 

passengers continue to suffer difficulties in obtaining and using these services. 

Furthermore, variable standards in relation to driver training and vehicle 

specifications mean that passengers may have very different experiences from 

one area to another.  

1.31 We recommend that taxi and private hire drivers, both new and existing, should 

be required to undergo disability awareness training as a pre-condition of the 

grant or renewal of a licence. Our proposals give licensing authorities the power 

to introduce a new duty to stop when hailed, associated with compellability to 

help address the problem of drivers ignoring disabled passengers. Our 

recommendations to make complaints procedures more accessible can also be 

particularly valuable to empower disabled users. 

ENFORCEMENT 

1.32 Under our recommendations, enforcement would remain the responsibility of 

licensing authorities. However, under current law, licensing officers are only able 

to take action against their own licensees. Furthermore, many licensing 

enforcement officers told us that their powers were not sufficient to tackle the 

breaches of conditions and licensing law they encountered.  

Page 16



 9

1.33 Many of the problems with enforcement derive from the lack of adequate 

resources and a perceived lack of interest in enforcing existing rules. These are 

not issues that legal reform is apt to address. On the other hand, we make a 

range of recommendations to enhance licensing officers’ powers, including 

granting them powers to stop a licensed vehicle on a road, without the need for a 

police officer to be present; to impound vehicles for touting; and to issue a fixed 

penalty notice to a person whom they have reason to believe has breached any 

provision in national standards.  

1.34 We also recommend that such powers should apply in respect of out-of-area 

vehicles. Our proposed reforms will make it possible for licence conditions 

prescribed as part of national standards (which will form the entirety of private 

hire licence conditions as well as the core of taxi conditions) to be enforced by 

any licensing officer against any licensee, across England and Wales.  

HEARINGS AND APPEALS 

1.35 The current law is characterised by inconsistency and complexity. We propose a 

simplified, uniform system. We recommend that the procedure for statutory 

appeals should be standardised across England and Wales (including London) 

for all forms of licence and irrespective of whether the decision challenged is a 

refusal of an application for a licence, a suspension or a revocation. In line with 

the current London model, applicants should be able to require the licensing 

authority to reconsider its original decision, the second stage in the statutory 

appeal process being an appeal to the magistrates’ court, with a further right of 

appeal to the Crown Court. Further, we recommend that local taxi conditions 

should be amenable to a streamlined judicial review procedure in the County 

Court. 

 

23 May 2014 

Page 17



 10

LIST OF RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

CHAPTER 2 – RETAINING THE TWO TIER SYSTEM 

Recommendation 1 

We recommend retaining the two-tier system. Regulation should continue to 

distinguish between taxis, which can be hailed or use ranks, and private hire 

vehicles, which can only be pre-booked. (Page 16) 

CHAPTER 3 – REFORM OF DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE 

Recommendation 2 

We recommend that the offences relating to plying for hire should be abolished. 

We propose replacing the concept of plying for hire with a new scheme of 

offences, resting on the principal prohibition of carrying passengers for hire 

without a licence, alongside a new offence making it unlawful for anyone other 

than a local taxi driver to accept a journey starting “there and then”.  (Page 22) 

Recommendation 3 

We recommend a statutory definition of pre-booking in order to create a clear 

distinction between the work of a taxi in its licensing area and the work of a 

private hire vehicle. (Page 22) 

Recommendation 4 

We recommend that the term “hackney carriage” should be replaced in    

legislation with the word “taxi”. The term “private hire vehicle” should remain 

unchanged. (Page 24) 

Recommendation 5 

We recommend that only the providers of licensed taxi services should be 

allowed to describe themselves using the term “taxi” on vehicles or in advertising 

materials. (Page 24) 

Recommendation 6 

Operators across England and Wales (dispatchers under our Bill) should be 

under a duty to provide a price or an an estimate of the fare on request, as is 

already the case in London. (Page 26) 

Recommendation 7 

We recommend that taxis picking up passengers outside their licensing area 

should be subject to a pre-booking requirement, which would be statutorily 

defined for the first time. This would require provision of an estimate of the price 

for the journey in advance, if requested, and record-keeping obligations. These 

requirements could be further refined through national standards as set by the 

Secretary of State. (Page 32) 

 

Page 18



 11

Recommendation 8 

We do not recommend the introduction of record-keeping requirements in respect 

of taxis except where they are picking up passengers outside their licensing area. 

(Page 32) 

Recommendation 9 

We recommend that local authority stopping officers should have a new 

enforcement power to require licensed vehicles to move on where the officer 

considers that:  

(1) there is a reasonable likelihood that the public may believe the vehicle is 

available for immediate hire; 

(2) the vehicle is causing an obstruction to traffic flow; or 

(3) the driver is attempting to take work away from ranked taxis. (Page 33) 

Recommendation 10 

We recommend introducing a new offence which makes it unlawful for anyone 

other than a locally licensed taxi driver to accept a booking for a journey starting 

there and then. (Page 34) 

Recommendation 11 

We recommend that compellability should be retained in its current form. It 

should be open to licensing authorities to express compellability as a time or 

distance from the point of hire, or as extending to the boundaries of a licensing 

zone. Licensing authorities should also be able to extend the compellable 

distance up to seven miles beyond the boundary of the licensing area, or twenty 

miles in the case of Transport for London. (Page 37) 

Recommendation 12 

Licensing authorities should have the power to make a determination that in their 

areas, taxis should be under a duty to stop when hailed.  In such areas, it would 

be an offence for a taxi driver in a vehicle displaying a “for hire” sign to fail to stop 

in response to a hail, without reasonable excuse. (Page 38) 

Recommendation 13 

Licensing authorities should be under a duty to consult on the need to alter rank 

provision; and to consider whether new ranks should be appointed, or current 

ones moved or removed, on a periodic basis not exceeding every three years. 

(Page 39) 

Recommendation 14 

We recommend that those acting in the course of a business who pass taxi or 

private hire bookings to providers who they know or suspect to be unlicensed 

should be guilty of an offence. (Page 41) 

Recommendation 15 

We do not propose to require intermediaries working solely with licensed taxis 

Page 19



 12

(which we refer to as “radio circuits”) to be licensed. (Page 44) 

Recommendation 16 

We recommend that licensed operators (in future to be referred to in legislation 

as “dispatchers”) should be retained as a necessary element of the regulation of 

private hire services. (Page 46) 

Recommendation 17 

We recommend that operator licensing should only cover dispatch functions, and 

no longer apply to the invitation or acceptance of bookings as such. However, if it 

is shown that an individual or company accepted a hire vehicle booking, a 

presumption should arise that that person also “dispatched” the driver. This 

ensures the continued accountability of those who, in the course of business, 

accept hire vehicle bookings from the public. (Page 48) 

Recommendation 18 

It should also be an offence, in the course of business, to dispatch an unlicensed 

vehicle or driver. It would also be an offence for a person to dispatch a private 

hire vehicle and driver unless that person holds a dispatcher’s licence. It would 

be a defence if the driver and vehicle were reasonably believed to hold 

appropriate taxi licences. (Page 48) 

Recommendation 19 

Persons accepting a hire vehicle booking in the course of business should be 

under a duty to provide information to the hirer in respect of any person on to 

whom they passed the booking. (Page 48) 

CHAPTER 4 – DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE 

Recommendation 20 

We recommend that our proposed reforms should extend to all of England and 

Wales, including London and Plymouth. (Page 55) 

Recommendation 21 

Taxi and private hire licensing should cover vehicles regardless of their form or 

construction, including non-motorised vehicles. (Page 57) 

Recommendation 22 

We recommend that taxi and private hire licensing requirements should only 

cover services provided for commercial gain. (Page 63) 

Recommendation 23 

We recommend that taxi and private hire licensing should not cover the carriage 

of a passenger as an ancillary or incidental part of another service. (Page 63) 

Recommendation 24 

We recommend that, for the purposes of taxi, private hire and public service 

vehicle legislation, all passenger seats and spaces capable of carrying a standing 

Page 20



 13

passenger should be included when assessing vehicle carrying capacity. (Page 

66) 

Recommendation 25 

We recommend that consideration be given to revising the criteria for licensing a 

vehicle as a “small public service vehicle” , making them more clearly centred on local 

bus services. (Page 67) 

Recommendation 26 

We recommend extending the reach of taxi and private hire licensing to larger 

vehicles in two circumstances: 

(a) on a mandatory basis, in respect of stretch limousines and 

novelty vehicles; and 

(b) on an optional basis, where providers want to use larger vehicles 

in a taxi or private hire business. (Page 70) 

Recommendation 27 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to exempt 

certain categories of vehicle or services used to carry passengers for hire from 

the requirement to hold a taxi or private hire licence. Licensing authorities would, 

however, retain the power to impose licensing requirements on vehicles used as 

taxis within their local licensing area. (Page 71) 

Recommendation 28 

We recommend that wedding and funeral cars should continue to be exempt from 

taxi and private hire licensing while the vehicle is being used in connection with a 

wedding or a funeral. (Page 74) 

Recommendation 29 

Non-professional use of licensed taxi and private hire vehicles, including by non-

professional drivers, should be permitted, subject to a rebuttable presumption 

that such vehicles are being used professionally when they are carrying 

passengers. (Page 77) 

CHAPTER 5 – COMMON NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR TAXI AND PRIVATE 

HIRE 

Recommendation 30 

We recommend the introduction of national standards for taxi and private hire 
services. (Page 80) 

Recommendation 31 

National standards should promote enforcement, protection of the environment 
and accessibility, in addition to safety. (Page 82) 

 

 

Page 21



 14

Recommendation 32 

National standards for taxi services should be comparable but not necessarily 
identical to national standards for private hire services. (Page 82) 

Recommendation 33 

We recommend that driver and vehicle standards should be set in secondary 
legislation by the Secretary of State. (Page 84) 

Recommendation 34 

The standard setting power of the Secretary of State should be subject to a 
statutory consultation requirement. (Page 91) 

Recommendation 35 

We recommend that the ability to apply for a vehicle licence should no longer be 
restricted to vehicle owners. (Page 93) 

Recommendation 36 

Applicants for vehicle licences should not be subject to a fit and proper person 
test. (Page 95) 

Recommendation 37 

We recommend that licensing authorities should not have a general power to 

impose individual conditions on the holders of taxi or private hire licences. (Page 

98) 

CHAPTER 6 – CRIMINAL OFFENCES SPECIFIC TO THE TAXI AND PRIVATE 

HIRE TRADES 

Recommendation 38 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should exercise the standard setting 

power to provide that a conviction for specified offences is a breach of a licensing 

condition, or incompatible with eligibility to hold a licence. (Page 101) 

Recommendation 39 

The Secretary of State should have the power to designate specific licence 

conditions, breach of which will amount to a criminal offence. (Page 102) 

CHAPTER 7 – NATIONAL STANDARDS FOR PRIVATE HIRE 

Recommendation 40 

Private hire services should only be subject to national standards. Licensing 

authorities should no longer have the power to impose local conditions. (Page 

104) 

Recommendation 41 

We recommend that dispatchers should continue to be subject to fit and proper 

person requirements as part of national standards. (Page 105) 

Recommendation 42 

We recommend that dispatchers should be subject to a statutory duty to maintain 

Page 22



 15

records in such form as may be prescribed by the Secretary of State. (Page 107) 

Recommendation 43 

Signage requirements for private hire vehicles should form part of the national 

standards determined by the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State should 

impose requirements that aim to ensure that the public are able to distinguish 

easily between taxis and private hire vehicles. (Page 112) 

Recommendation 44 

We recommend that operator/dispatchers should no longer be restricted to 

working only with drivers and vehicles whose licences are issued by the same 

licensing authority as the dispatcher. (Page 115) 

Recommendation 45 

Dispatchers should have the ability to sub-contract bookings to any dispatcher in 

England and Wales. (Page 117) 

CHAPTER 8 – LOCAL TAXI STANDARDS 

Recommendation 46 

We recommend that licensing authorities should retain the power to set local taxi 

standards over and above national standards. (Page 120) 

Recommendation 47 

Licensing authorities should be required to consult on additional licensing 

conditions for taxi drivers and vehicles. (Page 121) 

CHAPTER 9 – TAXI FARE REGULATION 

Recommendation 48 

Licensing authorities should retain the ability to regulate taxi fares, in respect of 

any journey within the compellable distance. (Page 125) 

Recommendation 49 

A taxi driver should be allowed to charge more than the metered fare for journeys 

starting inside the licensing area and ending beyond the compellable distance 

only if this is agreed in advance. In the case of pre-booked journeys starting 

outside the compellable distance the price or an estimate should be given on 

request and, if so, recorded. (Page 125) 

Recommendation 50 

We recommend that licensing authorities should retain the power to regulate 

fares charged for pre-booked taxi journeys. However, there should be no power 

to regulate third party booking fees, provided these are agreed in advance. (Page 

130) 

CHAPTER 10 – ADMINISTRATION OF THE LICENSING SYSTEM 

Recommendation 51 

The principle of cost recovery should continue to apply in respect of taxi and 

Page 23



 16

private hire licensing fees. (Page 134) 

Recommendation 52 

Licensing authorities should be able to collect and use licensing fees from taxi 

and private hire licensing only for the following purposes:  

 (1) administration of the licensing system (including but not limited to  

  processing applications for granting or renewing licences and carrying 

  out inspections and tests); 

(2)  statutorily required reviews of fare levels, rank provision, accessibility 

  and existing quantity restrictions at least every three years; 

 (3)  enforcement of the licensing system including but not limited to the 

  control and supervision of taxi and private hire services (whether  

  licensed or unlicensed) and activities associated with suspending or 

  revoking licences; and 

 (4) providing taxi ranks. (Page 134) 

Recommendation 53 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should set a private hire licensing fee 

which could not be varied locally. Taxi licensing fees should continue to be set 

locally, but at a level no lower than the national private hire fee. (Page 135) 

Recommendation 54 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to set up a 

system of pooling private hire licence fees nationally, for the purposes of 

redistributing these to reflect enforcement needs, in accordance with such a 

scheme as may be prescribed. (Page 136) 

Recommendation 55 

Licensing authorities should have the power to combine their taxi and private hire 

licensing areas. (Page 138) 

Recommendation 56 

We recommend that licensing authorities should be under a duty to publish their 

driver, vehicle and operator licensing data in such form as the Secretary of State 

may require. (Page 140) 

Recommendation 57 

Licensing authorities should have a more flexible power to introduce and remove 

taxi licensing zones. This power would permit removal or introduction of zones 

within a licensing district. The power should be subject to consultation and a 

statutory public interest test. (Page 143) 

CHAPTER 11 – QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS 

Recommendation 58 

We recommend that licensing authorities should continue to have the power to 

Page 24



 17

limit the number of taxi vehicles licensed in their area. (Page 159) 

Recommendation 59 

The power of licensing authorities to impose quantity restrictions should be 

subject to a statutory public interest test. Further, the Secretary of State  should 

have regulation-making powers prescribing how the statutory test should be 

applied. (Page 162) 

Recommendation 60 

Decisions to restrict taxi numbers should be reviewed at least every three years 

and be subject to local consultation in accordance with such procedures as may 

be prescribed in regulations made by the Secretary of State. (Page 162) 

Recommendation 61 

In licensing areas where quantity restrictions already exist at the time of the 

introduction of our reforms, but not in other areas, vehicle licence holders should 

continue to be able to transfer their taxi licences at a premium. (Page 166) 

CHAPTER 12 – ACCESSIBILITY 

Recommendation 62 

We recommend that taxi and private hire drivers be required to undergo disability 

awareness training of a standard set by the Secretary of State. (Page 170) 

Recommendation 63 

We recommend that the Secretary of State require information on how to 

complain about taxi and private hire vehicle services to be displayed in taxi and 

private hire vehicles. (Page 171) 

Recommendation 64 

We recommend that local licensing authorities should display complaint 

information in offices, libraries and on websites. (Page 171) 

Recommendation 65 

We recommend that licensing authorities conduct an accessibility review at three 

year intervals. (Page 172) 

Recommendation 66 

We recommend that the Secretary of State require holders of taxi and private hire 

driver licences and dispatcher licences to comply with the Equality Act 2010 as a 

condition of the licence. (Page 175) 

Recommendation 67 

We recommend that licensing authorities should reconsider rank design to 

ensure compliance with the Equality Act 2010. (Page 177) 

Recommendation 68 

We recommend that licensing conditions should provide that information about 

the licensing authority and local operators should be provided in alternative 

Page 25



 18

formats, as well as information about the types of vehicle available in their area. 

(Page 177) 

Recommendation 69 

We recommend that the Secretary of State should have the power to impose 

accessibility requirements on large operator/dispatchers. In particular, the power 

should permit the setting of quotas of accessible vehicles which must be 

available to such dispatchers. (Page 179) 

CHAPTER 13 – ENFORCEMENT 

Recommendation 70 

We recommend that licensing officers who have been suitably trained and 

accredited should be given the power to stop licensed taxi and private hire 

vehicles in a public place for the purpose of checking compliance with licensing 

requirements. (Page 183) 

Recommendation 71 

The offence of touting should be retained. It should continue to be an offence of 

broad application which extends to all persons, whether licensed or unlicensed. 

(Page 187) 

Recommendation 72 

We recommend that there should be a new defence to touting, where the 

solicitation is in respect of a licensed taxi or private hire vehicle, if the soliciting 

occurs in a place which has been designated by that licensing authority for that 

purpose, and that conditions as may be specified by the licensing authority have 

been complied with. (Page 187) 

Recommendation 73 

We recommend that the Sentencing Council consider amending the Magistrate’s 

Court Sentencing Guidelines in respect of taxi touting to take into account the 

vulnerability of the persons solicited as a relevant factor in sentencing. (Page 

189) 

Recommendation 74 

We recommend that licensing authorities should have the power to impound 

vehicles used in connection with touting. (Page 193) 

Recommendation 75 

Fixed penalties should be among the sanctions available in respect of minor 

criminal offences under taxi and private hire legislation. (Page 195) 

Recommendation 76 

We recommend extending the power to suspend licences immediately on 

grounds of public safety to all licence types, in line with the current position in 

London. (Page 196) 

 

Page 26



 19

Recommendation 77 

Licensing officers should be able to take non-criminal enforcement action against 

vehicles, drivers and operators, licensed outside their licensing area. (Page 198) 

Recommendation 78 

We recommend that powers to revoke a licence should be available only to the 

licensing authority which issued that licence. However, enforcement officers in 

another area should have the power to: 

 (a)  suspend a licence when they consider this to be  

  necessary in  the interests of public safety; and 

 (b)  make recommendations to the home licensing authority 

  as to appropriate sanctions, to which the home authority 

  must have regard. (Page 200) 

CHAPTER 14 – HEARINGS AND APPEALS 

Recommendation 79 

The right to appeal against refusals to grant or renew taxi and private hire 

licences or to suspend or revoke them should be limited to the applicant or 

licence holder. (Page 202) 

Recommendation 80 

We recommend that the first stage in the appeal process in respect of refusals, 

suspensions or revocations of licences should be the right to require licensing 

authorities to reconsider the original decision. Appellants should have the right to 

bypass this stage and proceed direct to the magistrates’ court. (Page 206) 

Recommendation 81 

We recommend that all taxi and private hire licensing appeals should be heard in 

the magistrates’ court. (Page 209) 

Recommendation 82 

We recommend the retention of an onward right of appeal to the Crown 

Court. (Page 210) 

Recommendation 83 

We recommend that applicants for a vehicle licence for an opt-in vehicle should 

have a right of appeal to the Upper Tribunal if their application is refused on the 

basis of an objection by the Senior Traffic Commissioner.  (Page 210) 

Recommendation 84 

We recommend that a County Court judicial review procedure along the lines 

provided under the Housing Act 1996 should be available to challenge taxi 

conditions set by licensing authorities. (Page 212) 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 
 

THURSDAY, 3 JULY 2014 

REPORT BY: 
 

CHIEF OFFICER, PLANNING AND THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

SUBJECT:  
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - PERSONAL LICENCES 

 
 
1.00 
 
1.01 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To inform Members of issues surrounding the renewal of Licensing 
Act personal licences in 2015 

  
2.00 
 
2.01 
 
 
 
 
2.02 
 
 
 
2.03 
 
 
 
 
2.04 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 came into effect in 2005. It requires that sales 
of alcohol cannot be made unless there is a Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) appointed and that he or she holds a personal 
licence. 
 
The personal licence holder does not have to attend or oversee each 
sale – it is sufficient that such sales are made under the authority of 
the DPS. 
 
Back in 2005 many hundreds of applications were received as existing 
licensees utilised their ‘grandfather rights’ to transfer from the 
magistrate’s court system to the new arrangements overseen by 
Licensing Authorities. 
 
By June 2014 Flintshire had issued 1,495 Personal Licences. 

  
3.00 
 
3.01 
 
 
 
 
3.02 
 
 
3.03 
 
 
 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Personal Licences are valid for 10 years unless surrendered. The 
Government was considering dispensing with the need to renew such 
licences as a deregulation measure, but after representations have 
decided that renewal will now take place. 
 
This means that in 2015 there will be an additional heavy workload as 
the originally issued licences reach their 10 year expiry point. 
 
Applications had to be made to the Licensing Authority in which the 
person was ordinarily resident. That authority remains the ‘relevant 
authority’ even though the individual may have moved out of the area 
or taken employment elsewhere. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



 
3.04 
 
 
 
 
3.05 
 

 
Any changes of name or address should have been notified to the 
issuing authority though we know this has not always happened. 
Details of any relevant convictions received by the holder since the 
date of issue should also have been notified.   
 
Renewal for those who are still living and working in Flintshire should 
be relatively straightforward e.g. confirmation of name & address 
details, submission of an up to date criminal convictions certificate and 
a new photograph for the ID badge part of the licence. There will be 
significant work, however, in tracking down people who have left the 
area - particularly if they have not been conscientious in informing the 
Licensing Authority of their relocation. 

  
4.00 
 
4.01 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Members note that the renewal of hundreds of personal licences 
in 2015 will lead to a significant additional workload.  

  
5.00 
 
5.01 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
No details have yet been published on the fee that applicants will have 
to submit with their renewal application. This will be set by the 
Government. The fee for a Personal Licence is currently £37.00 
(unchanged since 2005) 

  
6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 

 
 None 

 
7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

 
None 

  
8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 

 
 None 

 
9.00 
 
9.01 

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Licensing Section is currently working at full capacity and the 
personal licence renewals will represent a significant but defined 
additional workload. Depending upon what the application fees are 
when published a judgement can be made about additional staffing. 

  
10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 

 
None 

  
 

Page 30



 
11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 

 
None 

  
12.00 APPENDICES 

 
 None 

 
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

 Licensing Act 2003 
Section 182 Guidance for Local Authorities 
FCC Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

 Contact Officer: Gemma Potter 
Telephone: 01352 703371 
Email: gemma.potter@flintshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 The Future of Taxi Legislation
	Enc. 1 for The Future of Taxi Legislation

	6 Licensing Act 2003 - Personal Licences

